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Hi Norma

| hope you are well, please see attached updated planning process outline reflecting your comments
below. Please let me know if this now covers the relevant matters you raise in your email below.

Also could you please let me know whether Willoughby is implementing any new protocols for

meetings, noting that we have an upcoming meeting booked in on the 30t March? Are there any
other things we need to be aware of relating to Council operations? Remote working etc.

Kind Regards
Christophe

CHRISTOPHE CHARKOS
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR

D +61 2 8233 7660
T +61 2 8233 9900
M +61 403 487 586

E ccharkos@urbis.com.au
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Our highest priority is the health and wellbeing of our
people, clients and community. Click here to read

Urbis’ response to COVID-19.

From: Shankie-Williams, Norma <Norma.Shankie-Williams@Willoughby.nsw.gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 28 February 2020 6:03 PM
To: Christophe Charkos <ccharkos@urbis.com.au>
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MEMO

To: Craig O’Brien (Willoughby Council)

Cc: David Dibiase, Norma Shankie Williams, lan Arnott.

From: Christophe Charkos

Email: ccharkos@urbis.com.au

Date: 13 March 2020

Subject: Reclassification of Council Land and Road Acquisition Process — 845 Pacific Highway
Dear Craig,

As discussed in our meeting on the 29 January 2020, | have detailed our understanding of the
process for the reclassification of Council land and Road Closure.

1. Relevant to both processes

e Inrespect of both community land and road, Council would conduct a title review at the outset
to ensure that Council is the registered proprietor of the land in question and the classification
of the land is as stated. Council would be the relevant authority for the road.

e The reclassification of Council land from Community to Operational is to be consistent with the
LEP Practice Note PN 16-001, issued October 2016 — ‘Classification and reclassification of public
land through a local environmental plan.’.

2. Reclassification of Council Land from Community to Operational.

e Section 45 of the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA 1993) prevents Council from selling,
exchanging or otherwise disposing of ‘community land’ such as a park or open space.

o Before it can be sold the land must first be reclassified from ‘community land’ to ‘operational
land’ via a planning proposal submitted to the Department of Planning, Infrastructure and
Environment (DPIE) (Chapter 6, Part 2, Division 1 of the LGA 1993).

e Inrespect of the re-classification of the land, Council officers would need to be satisfied that the
proposal is appropriate, and that re-classification is recommended. The very nature of
community classification is to preserve the land for community use. Any proposal for re-
classification would need to be strenuously considered. Part of this internal process would
involve consideration by Council’s Executive Leadership Team and potentially a Councillor
briefing prior to consideration at a Council meeting.

e Council officers prepare a report recommending reclassification of the land for Council’s
consideration this would be informed by an independent land valuation report and a concept
plan which illustrates how the site would be incorporated into development of 845 Pacific
Highway.
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e If Councillors endorse the reclassification then a planning proposal is prepared by Council to
reclassify the land from Community to Operational. This is sent to DPIE for Gateway
Determination.

e Gateway determination will require consultation with Agencies and Community (exhibition).

e A public hearing is required by Chapter 6, Part 1, Division 1, Section 29 of the Local Government
Act 1993.

e Report is sent back to Council post public hearing and public exhibition.

o If supported Land is then reclassified as operational via Gazettal of LEP Amendment.

e Itis only after Gazettal of the LEP amendment that the property would be available to be:

e Exchanged or sold, and
e Rezoned from RE1 to B3 Commercial Core.

e Whilst reclassification of the land does not commit Council to the sale/exchange of the site. Any
future divestment of the land would be the subject of a separate process and report to Council
following reclassification. The disposal would be conducted in line with the procedures outlined
in Council’s Sale or Lease of Council Land Policy, 2000 and outlined below:

e Initially, an assessment of the current state of land would be undertaken, which
includes a review of the current use of land, identification of services and utilities
on/under the land owned by various service authorities, and consideration of possible
future uses for the land

e Upon successful consideration of the assessment, the assessment will be put on
notification

e Council would then consider the outcomes of the public notification and review of any
comments

e Following this Council would then seek to obtain another market valuation of the
property to inform any sale/exchange of Council owned land. Council would recover all
legal and associated costs (statutory, survey etc) from the purchaser from any sale of
Council-owned land.

e Itis our understanding that only once the land has been reclassified and an agreement is
reached to exchange or sell the land, can a planning proposal be submitted to change the
controls on the ‘corner park’ site to facilitate a development scheme on the subject site(s)
consistent with the Chatswood CBD Strategy.

e Itis also our understanding that the 3 stages in the process (reclassification, sale and rezoning)
cannot run concurrently given that the reclassification of the land does not commit Council to
sell the land, and that the sale of the land is an independent process.

3. Road Closure and Acquisition

e Council as the relevant Roads Authority can propose to close a Council Public Road under
Section 38A of the Roads Act 1993. Individuals wishing to initiate the closing of a Council Public
Road must first formally submit a request to close the road to Council’s Property Section. In
respect of Point 2, first bullet point, Council may only propose the closure of a road in certain
circumstances (s.38 A Roads Act 1993) , these being:

o Ifthe road is not reasonably required as road for public use;
o The road is not required to provide continuity for an existing road network;
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o If the road provides a means of vehicular access to particular land that another public road
provides lawful and reasonably practicable vehicular access to that land;

e Council must give public notice of the proposed closure. This includes publishing a notice in the
local newspaper as well as notifying all adjoining landowners and relevant authorities.

e If notifiable authorities (utilities providers, NSW Department of Planning, Industry &
Environment, Transport for NSW, Sydney Metro etc.) make a formal objection to the closure
then the road may not be closed unless the objection is withdrawn or set aside by the Land and
Environment Court.

e There is a risk that a notifiable authority may formally object to the closure, resulting in a
cessation of the road closure process

e If there are no objections by notifiable authorities, then publication of the notice closing the
council public road is progressed. Following this, the road ceases to be a public road, and the
rights of passage and access that previously existed in relation to the road are extinguished. If
the road is a classified road (see s.38D of the Roads Act 1993) then TfNSW (RMS) consent would
be required even if there are no objections. Roads are classified under Part 5 of the Roads Act
and tend to be ‘busier’ roads. Council will need to determine if the road in question is classified.

e The land comprising a former road remains vested in Willoughby Council and is considered
‘operational land’ and as such may then be disposed of by sale. regarding the classification of
land. Council note in the event that the road is not classified under the Local Government Act
1993 it would be prudent to classify the land as operational upon closure. If Councils records
indicate the (current) road is classified as operational, Council should confirm the classification
has occurred in accordance with the LGA requirements. Council to confirm whether this would
mean a planning proposal is requried?

e The proponent would be required to pay legal costs associated with reclassification of land and
road closure, as well as any surveying costs (for example, creation of a new lot).

e A development application for land subdivision may need to be undertaken to formalise the land
parcel the subject of the sale.

e It is our understanding that this sale would be informed by a land valuation and agreement to
terms. Council may entertain sale negotiations by other prospective purchasers.

e Asthelandis already zoned B3 Commercial Core, once it is purchased it can form part of the
development lot the subject of a development application.
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Cc: Tony Zhang <tony@vantagergroup.com.au>; Arnott, lan
<lan.Arnott@Willoughby.nsw.gov.au>; John Wynne <jwynne@urbis.com.au>; O'Brien, Craig
<Craig.Obrien@Willoughby.nsw.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Meeting - 845 Pacific Highway Chatswood

Dear Christophe

Thank you for the information you sent to Council on 5 February.

We would confirm that the steps set out in your Memo appear to be accurate.

Some ad(ditional steps are considered prudent and are set out below with commentary.
You'll appreciate these comments are indicative of process and in no way reflect any
potential outcome.

1. In respect of both community land and road, Council would conduct a title review
at the outset to ensure that Council is the registered proprietor of the land in
question and the classification of the land is as stated. Council would be the
relevant authority for the road.

2. In respect of the re-classification of the land, Council officers would need to be
satisfied that the proposal is appropriate and that re-classification is
recommended. The very nature of community classification is to preserve the
land for community use. Any proposal for re-classification would need to be
strenuously considered.

Part of this internal process would involve consideration by Council’s Executive
Leadership Team and potentially a Councillor briefing prior to consideration at a
Council meeting.

3. In respect of road closure:

a) Inrespect of Point 2, first bullet point, Council may only propose the closure
of a road in certain circumstances (s.38 A Roads Act 1993) , these being:

if the road is not reasonably required as road for public use;

the road is not required to provide continuity for an existing road
network;

if the road provides a means of vehicular access to particular land
that another public road provides lawful and reasonably practicable vehicular
access to that land;

4. In respect of Point 2 bullet point 5, if the road is a classified road (see s.38D of the
Roads Act 1993) then TINSW (RMS) consent would be required even if there are
no objections. Roads are classified under Part 5 of the Roads Act and tend to be
‘busier’ roads. Council will need to determine if the road in question is classified.

5. In respect Point 2, bullet point 6 regarding the classification of land, the road may
not be classified under the Local Government Act 1993 and therefore, it would be
prudent to classify the land as operational upon closure. If Councils records
indicate the (current) road is classified as operational, Council should confirm the
classification has occurred in accordance with the LGA requirements.

6. The proponent would be required to pay legal costs associated with
reclassification of land and road closure, as well as any surveying costs (for



example, creation of a new lot).

7. The reclassification of Council land from Community to Operational is to be
consistent with the LEP Practice Note PN 16-001, issued October 2016 —
‘Classification and reclassification of public land through a local environmental
plan.’.

It is suggested that these comments be incorporated into your process outline, and we
will then have an agreed process ‘road map’.

At the outset, the proponent would need to request Council commence the title review
land reclassification process in writing.

Kind Regards
Norma

Norma Shankie-Williams - Strategic Planning Team Leader
WILLOUGHBY CITY COUNCIL

PO Box 57 Chatswood NSW 2057

P+6129777 7671 |M

E Norma.Shankie-Williams@Willoughby.nsw.gov.au

willoughby.nsw.gov.au | visitchatswood.com.au | theconcourse.com.au

TRANSPORT STRATEGY

Have your say

From: Christophe Charkos [mailto:ccharkos@urbis.com.au]

Sent: Wednesday, 5 February 2020 5:34 PM

To: O'Brien, Craig

Cc: Shankie-Williams, Norma; Tony Zhang; Arnott, Ian; John Wynne
Subject: RE: Meeting - 845 Pacific Highway Chatswood

Hi Craig

As requested in our meeting last week please find attached our understanding of the land acquisition
and road closure process. It would be great if we could get an outline of both processes so Vantager
can make an informed decision in relation to the development of its site at 845 Pacific Highway.

Please call me if you have any questions.

Kind Regards
Christophe

CHRISTOPHE CHARKOS
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR

D +61 2 8233 7660

T +61 2 8233 9900

M +61 403 487 586

E ccharkos@urbis.com.au
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Urbis recognises the traditional owners of the land on which we work.
Learn more about our Reconciliation Action Plan.
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